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          1  DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING

          2                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to the Preliminary Budget hearing on Aging.

          4  Karen Koslowitz has told us she is out of town today

          5  for personal reasons and she will not be with us at

          6  today's meeting. Let me then indicate that I am

          7  joined by Council Members Michael Abel from Queens

          8  and my colleague Una Clarke, and I expect that there

          9  will be other members joining us subsequently.

         10                 I am glad to see we are all here on

         11  time and we can begin our work.

         12                 And the meeting today is going to be

         13  a discussion of the Mayor's Plan for the Department

         14  of Aging for Fiscal Year '99/2000, and from what I

         15  see, unfortunately we start the process with a plan

         16  that doesn't have any money set aside for additional

         17  funding than what we have been used to having, and

         18  in spite of the fact that we have people who are

         19  living longer and our population is aging in in

         20  space, we have been advised through reading our

         21  budget manuals that people like me, as a City

         22  Council Member, my colleagues, will no longer be

         23  considered eligible for discretionary funding that

         24  we can apply to our senior centers, which is a

         25  problem that we haven't quite come to terms with.
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          2                 However, you know, we are only

          3  beginning the budget process and this is a first

          4  step and there are many, many more meetings that we

          5  will be holding and this is one of those periods of

          6  our existence where we add, we detract, we add again

          7  and we come to a final figure as to what we are

          8  going to be working with, and I am going to ask

          9  Commissioner Stupp if he would be kind enough to

         10  describe for us what DFTA's plans are for the next

         11  fiscal year, if you will, Commissioner.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Thank you, Madame

         13  Chair.

         14                 Good morning. Or actually, it is good

         15  afternoon. That shows you when I stick to the

         16  prepared text I am right on the wrong place.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Time flies.

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Good afternoon.

         19  My name is Herbert W. Stupp, I am Commissioner of

         20  the New York City Department for the Aging. I am

         21  pleased to be here today before members of the City

         22  Council Committees on Aging and Finance to give

         23  testimony on the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2000

         24  Preliminary Budget for the Department.

         25                 Older New Yorkers have been able to
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          2  access a full range of services offered by the

          3  Department for the Aging, without suffering the

          4  effects of funding reductions throughout the

          5  Giuliani Administration.

          6                 During the past five years, the

          7  Mayor, with your strong support, has substantially

          8  increased our City funding by more than 30 percent,

          9  making it possible for us to maintain service levels

         10  in the face of rising food costs and other expenses.

         11                 In fact, while our federal and state

         12  funding has only been marginally increased, the

         13  City's contribution to DFTA has steadily grown.

         14                 Since 1994, City tax levy funds have

         15  increased so that they now make up almost 68 percent

         16  of our budget. This is the highest local

         17  contribution to aging services in the nation.

         18                 I would like to talk about some of

         19  the Department's Fiscal Year 1999 achievements and

         20  also to mention some of the highlights of the

         21  Mayor's proposed Preliminary Fiscal Year 2000 budget

         22  for the Department. Thus far in FY '99, we have been

         23  able to maintain our congregate and home-delivered

         24  meals programs through $1 million that was

         25  annualized in our Fiscal Year '99 budget. We were
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          2  able to increase the reimbursement rate to our

          3  contractors for raw food costs by four cents per

          4  meal, bringing the 1999 per meal reimbursement rate

          5  for raw food costs to $1.81. We are pleased that

          6  there are no significant waiting lists for

          7  home-delivered meals, and we move rapidly to address

          8  such lists through shifting of funds during the year

          9  as needs develop.

         10                 At the federal level, the Older

         11  Americans Act, the OAA, is our largest funding

         12  source. The Department received over $27 million in

         13  OAA funds during Fiscal Year 1999, plus an

         14  additional $7.3 million in USDA, that's agriculture,

         15  cash in lieu of commodity foods, based on meals

         16  served for a total of $34.5 million.

         17                 During Fiscal Year 2000, we are

         18  hoping that President Clinton's proposed budget

         19  increase for home-delivered meals will be reflected

         20  in future years allocations.

         21                 We are greatly encouraged by the

         22  President's recent budget proposal that would add

         23  significant funding to the Older Americans Act for a

         24  national family care-giver support program.

         25                 In short, this four-part initiative
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          2  includes a $1,000 tax credit intended to help this

          3  program support formal or informal long-term care,

          4  care-giver support, including respite care and

          5  information, and educational campaign on long-term

          6  care options and federal employee long-term care

          7  insurance.

          8                 Under the current funding formula,

          9  the Department would realize more than $3 million

         10  per year for the next five years to deal with this

         11  growing concern. Thanks to your efforts and the

         12  Mayor's support, the Department's budget was

         13  increased by $1 million in Fiscal 1999 and $2

         14  million in Fiscal Year 2000, to support the

         15  development of non-medical adult day care as a

         16  service for older New Yorkers and their families.

         17                 This service offers a critical

         18  support to elderly persons who, despite the

         19  limitations brought on by chronic illnesses or

         20  strokes, wish to live out their lives at home, and

         21  in the community, rather than in a nursing home.

         22                 Social adult day care is intended for

         23  physically and/or mentally frail who do not need the

         24  intensive rehabilitative therapies provided by day

         25  programs that are attached to nursing homes, but who
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          2  nevertheless can benefit from being in a structured,

          3  supportive group setting.

          4                 These social model programs provide

          5  the following benefits:

          6                 They bring older persons who might be

          7  socially isolated together for peer support and

          8  social interaction. In addition to close supervision

          9  and monitoring, the ratio, just parenthetically, the

         10  ratio of staff and volunteers to participants is

         11  much higher than senior centers.

         12                 The programs offer group activities

         13  that are especially designed to stimulate and

         14  enhance the strengths of the person served. Examples

         15  of such activities include memory enhancing games

         16  and regimens, or chair exercises for the physically

         17  frail or an ongoing art or music project to support

         18  dexterity and coordination.

         19                 They offer a range of assistance with

         20  functional tasks. This assistance can take the form

         21  of cueing the older person. For example, Mrs. Jones,

         22  pick up the fork and hold it between your thumb and

         23  index finger. Or it can extend to actual assistance

         24  in transferring from a wheelchair to a toilet seat,

         25  for example, or helping a person button clothes or
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          2  comb their hair.

          3                 They provide a hot, nutritious meal

          4  during lunchtime hours, they monitor the older

          5  person's health for warning signs so they can alert

          6  care-givers and provide assistance with referrals.

          7                 Many also assist with long-term care

          8  planning and some offer care-giver groups, as in

          9  care-giver support-type groups. They transport

         10  seniors to their programs. For many individuals who

         11  cannot access the service without some form of

         12  assisted transport, it is the essential ingredient.

         13                 The benefits of this type of program

         14  can already be demonstrated anecdotally. In the

         15  future we should be able to show a reduction in

         16  hospitalizations due to the improved health and

         17  earlier detection of incipient problems, care-giver

         18  support in respite, helping family members to

         19  improve the care they provided home and allowing

         20  them to remain employed outside the home, a

         21  financially viable alternative to one-on-one home

         22  care. Adult day services can deliver basic personal

         23  care needs in a group setting, while providing

         24  important peer group interaction, a benefit not

         25  associated with home care.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            10

          1  DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING

          2                 The $1 million in Fiscal Year 1999

          3  was distributed to 23 existing programs around the

          4  City that submitted plans to enhance their capacity

          5  to provide the service. The money went for a range

          6  of needed items, from staff training to site

          7  renovations and vehicles and from consultants for

          8  therapy to computers and wheelchairs.

          9                 The $2 million planned for Fiscal

         10  Year 2000 will be subject to the procurement

         11  process.

         12                 The RFP awards will be for start-up

         13  or expansion of the service in each borough.

         14                 As you know, the Senior Citizen Rent

         15  Increase Exemption program, the SCRIE Program, over

         16  the last several years has made remarkable

         17  improvements. It has achieved several milestones

         18  during the last year, which have bolstered the

         19  Department's effectiveness and strengthened our

         20  capacity to provide better information to our

         21  constituents.

         22                 I would like to highlight three

         23  initiatives in particular. First, in January 1998,

         24  the Department streamlined the recertification

         25  process for seniors who live in rent-controlled
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          2  apartments, making it easier for them to recertify

          3  their continued eligibility for SCRIE. As a result,

          4  the SCRIE unit experienced an unprecedented response

          5  rate of over 90 percent, while the grand total of

          6  all types of SCRIE applications processed reached a

          7  record high of over 44,000, our processing times for

          8  the fiscal year remain stable at under 34 days or 23

          9  business days.

         10                 Second, through a team effort between

         11  the Department of Finance and the Department for the

         12  Aging, a new SCRIE accounting system was implemented

         13  by the Department of Finance in June 1998 by

         14  building owner's clearer information and greater

         15  flexibility in managing their SCRIE-related

         16  accounts. Landlords can now crosscheck the detailed

         17  information they received from each agency in order

         18  to reconcile their SCRIE tax abatement records more

         19  easily.

         20                 Third, in January 1999, the

         21  Department published and began distribution of over

         22  170,000 copies of Your Guide to the Senior Citizen

         23  Rent Increase Exemption Program. This 40-page

         24  handbook, we have sent them to each of the Council

         25  offices in great numbers, but the 40-page handbook
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          2  was designed to help SCRIE applicants and their

          3  landlords understand how to participate in the SCRIE

          4  program and be informed about their rights and

          5  responsibility. Copies of the handbook were widely

          6  distributed to tenants, landlords, your district

          7  offices and those of other public officials.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I haven't

          9  gotten mine yet. As an aside, I have not yet

         10  received mine.

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: My Chief of

         13  Staff, left arm, is here and says that.

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We sent 200 to

         15  every district. All right, if it is not there by --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: It will be

         17  there, right?

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Because I live

         19  close, I will personally drop it off.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I will take it

         21  from you.

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: All right. Copies

         23  of the handbook were distributed and the other group

         24  we left out, various community-based organizations

         25  and advocacy groups also received multiple copies of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING

          2  this.

          3                 I would also like to provide you with

          4  an update of our English-as-a-second-language, ESL

          5  Program, and Citizenship Project.

          6                 This project was established in

          7  response to changes in federal welfare law, which

          8  placed many elderly legal immigrants in danger of

          9  losing food stamps and supplemental security income

         10  benefits.

         11                 We are currently in the midst of our

         12  fifth cycle of ESL classes. Thirty-five senior

         13  centers representing all five boroughs are

         14  participating. To date over 3,500 elderly immigrants

         15  have been enrolled in the program. In addition to

         16  classes in ESL and US history and government, many

         17  of the centers also offer counseling and assistance

         18  with applications and referrals to immigration

         19  advocates for help with matters that are beyond the

         20  scope of our program.

         21                 Two cycles of classes have been

         22  funded through Fiscal Year 1999. We received

         23  $250,000 from the Department of Youth and Community

         24  Development, DYCD, for classes beginning in

         25  September 1998 and continuing through the end of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING

          2  December.

          3                 The second allocation of $250,000

          4  from DYCD will enable us to continue classes through

          5  June 30th, 1999.

          6                 Because many seniors require a longer

          7  period of time than youngsters, for example, to

          8  become proficient in speaking and reading English,

          9  it is essential that this program continue beyond

         10  June 30th when current funding runs out.

         11                 We are currently exploring ways to

         12  secure additional funding, and I hope that DYCD will

         13  be able to assist us in that effort.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: We have also

         15  been told that Council Members will no longer have

         16  discretionary funding for those funds as well as

         17  senior funds, so that might be something we will

         18  talk about later on.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay.

         20                 I want to tell you about an exciting

         21  new project undertaken by DFTA during Fiscal Year

         22  1999, services to older refugees.

         23                 We were awarded a $980,000 grant from

         24  the State Office of Temporary and Disability

         25  Assistance to assist older legal refugees to become
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          2  naturalized citizens that provide supportive

          3  services during the naturalization process.

          4                 The project builds on our existing

          5  case management structure by augmenting DFTA-funded

          6  services in targeted geographical areas of the City.

          7  Based on census data, including clusters of refugees

          8  in the Bronx, Brooklyn and Queens, four DFTA-funded

          9  case management agencies have been designated entry

         10  points into the refugee project: Project SOS in the

         11  Bronx, JASA Shorefront Case Management, and

         12  Self-Help Kensington Program in Brooklyn and Forest

         13  Hills Community House in Queens.

         14                 The ultimate goal of these agencies

         15  is to assist as many legal refugees as possible to

         16  become citizens and independent members of their

         17  communities, by ensuring stabilization and

         18  amelioration of their needs, and referral to

         19  programs providing naturalization services.

         20                 Enrolled refugees receive assistance

         21  with all aspects of the naturalization process from

         22  the New York City Department of Youth and Community

         23  Development, a primary collaborator in the project.

         24                 During the first year of the project,

         25  which begins March 31st, 1999, this month, we
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          2  anticipate enrolling over 2,500 refugees, 60 years

          3  of age or older, with special emphasis on those over

          4  65.

          5                 The first year's award has enabled us

          6  to develop and implement the project in the three

          7  boroughs. The second grant of $1,044,000 for the

          8  year beginning April 1st, 1999, will enable us to

          9  consolidate our existing work among refugees from

         10  the former Soviet Union and Southeast Asia and to

         11  identify and reach out to other more hidden refugee

         12  populations.

         13                 We are very proud of the role played

         14  by our four case management agencies in assisting a

         15  large number of refugees to begin the process of

         16  becoming United States citizens.

         17                 I would like to provide you now with

         18  an update on our information systems and technology.

         19                 The Department continues to make

         20  progress in the development of systems to enable our

         21  community-based programs to take advantage of

         22  technology to improve service delivery.

         23                 In Fiscal Year 1999, we are expanding

         24  our Provider Data Systems, PDS, which automates

         25  service operations and manages client and employee
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          2  data to 320 sites around the City, up from 250 sites

          3  in Fiscal Year 1998.

          4                 The Department plans to introduce PDS

          5  at an additional 70 senior centers by the end of

          6  Fiscal 2000, a total of 390 installations. We are

          7  also providing increased training and technical

          8  support to help contractor staff make full use of

          9  PDS.

         10                 We have just completed a new version

         11  of PDS that incorporates easier navigation, fuller

         12  on-line help, availability of E.mail for transfer of

         13  information, and improvements to the case management

         14  functions.

         15                 In January, the Department completed

         16  upgrades of the computer equipment at over 100 sites

         17  to ensure Y2K compliance at all PDS locations.

         18                 The major redesign of the UNI-Form,

         19  which is an acronym for those of you who are

         20  listening, Uni-Form benefits assessment system,

         21  based on user feedback, is proceeding on schedule.

         22                 UNI-Form screens seniors for

         23  eligibility and facilitates the completion of

         24  applications for a range of up to 12 benefit and

         25  entitlement programs. This system will make it
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          2  possible for seniors to determine what federal,

          3  state and City benefits and entitlements they are

          4  eligible for and apply for those benefits in a

          5  single visit to one of our agencies.

          6                 The redesign will increase the speed

          7  of the system, while improving user-friendliness.

          8  Redesigned modules are being tested at a limited

          9  number of pilot sites, and we plan to redeploy the

         10  new version at 40 sites by the start of Fiscal Year

         11  2000.

         12                 In the past year, the Department

         13  launched the Seniors on the Internet Project, which

         14  provides an electronic template that enables

         15  non-technical users at senior centers to create,

         16  update and maintain customized Internet home pages

         17  for their programs. Hot links links to New York City

         18  web pages and DFTA's home pages allow seniors to

         19  interact with New York City officials and

         20  administrators. The seniors can maintain a calendar

         21  of events to inform the public of special activities

         22  at their center. A guestbook feature allows senior

         23  center participants to post diary-like entries and

         24  review those received from the general population.

         25                 A map has been included to post
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          2  travel instructions both by bus and subway. Three

          3  senior centers have already successfully established

          4  web sites as part of this project, and the

          5  Department plans to provide training and technical

          6  assistance to 22 additional centers by June 1999.

          7                 I would like to thank the City

          8  Council, and especially the Committee on Aging, for

          9  being so supportive of the Department's programs

         10  during the past year.

         11                 It has been a pleasure working

         12  together with Chairwoman Harrison and other members

         13  of the Committee to ensure that older New Yorkers

         14  continue to have access to the services they need.

         15                 With Mayor Giuliani's strong support,

         16  we will continue to work harder to ensure the high

         17  level delivery of our services.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You are very

         20  welcome.

         21                 The question that I would like to

         22  have some reference made to by you as well would be

         23  the impact of the Governor's anticipated, either

         24  contributions or diminution of services offered to

         25  our programs in the City; do you have any comment to
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          2  offer on that?

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There are some

          4  slight reductions that are proposed. One is the ISIP

          5  Program, which is our Home Care Program for people

          6  just above the Medicaid rate. We would lose close to

          7  $200,000 in administrative costs, which would be

          8  very tough to make up. As you know, people always

          9  care most about programs, whether you are talking

         10  about a public or a private fund, but yet even

         11  somebody who is not friendly to bureaucracy needs

         12  some level of staff to monitor this program, make

         13  sure that we have the appropriate level of services

         14  around the City. So that would be a loss.

         15                 I don't know if Ted or Linda would

         16  want to comment on other losses in the budget or how

         17  things wash out.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Please identify

         19  yourselves for the record.

         20                 MR. TUBERSKI: I am Ted Tuberski,

         21  Director of Administration and Budget at the

         22  Department.

         23                 We don't really have definitive

         24  numbers on the impact, but our estimate is that the

         25  net effect would be a loss of about $31,000. The
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          2  loss is mainly on the Administrative side, but it is

          3  offset by an increase in service dollars, but it

          4  also does increase our matching requirements for

          5  Administration, which is a little bit more difficult

          6  for us to put together than matching against service

          7  dollars. So it does create some administrative

          8  problems for us, but it is a net loss but the

          9  numbers aren't final yet.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Of course not.

         11  And the same question, and what do you anticipate

         12  the result will be of the federal budget coming down

         13  the pike?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, the federal

         15  budget, if passed as proposed now, would be a boon

         16  to the City. I think we calculated I think roughly

         17  $3 million that we would gain from that.

         18                 And of course, if I can put another

         19  plug in for an issue that I have made repeatedly,

         20  but is sort of an insider issue, is the formula

         21  issue. We could conceivably have a situation where

         22  the federal government is putting five, ten percent,

         23  15 percent more money into Older Americans Act

         24  programs, but because the formula as to how the

         25  money is divided up between the states has shifted,
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          2  New York State could still lose money, so the first

          3  time they looked at reauthorizing the Older

          4  Americans Act a few years ago, and coming up with a

          5  new formula, New York State was going to lose 15

          6  percent of its funding, and since then they have

          7  come up with other formulas that would be sort of

          8  held harmless, which still aren't fair, because New

          9  York State would be sort of flat while these other

         10  parts of the country that might not need the money

         11  or the services so much, they would be getting real

         12  bonanzas in these Older Americans Act funds. So we

         13  have to watch the funding formula, and it is one of

         14  our priorities in our federal advocacy efforts in

         15  Washington.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I want to

         17  introduce Council Member Tom White who has joined

         18  us, and I do believe he has a question to ask.

         19                 Council Member.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes. Thank you

         21  very much, Madame Chair.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You are

         23  welcome.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Good afternoon,

         25  Commissioner.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Councilman.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: In the

          4  Preliminary Budget, the Administration proposes to

          5  eliminate the elected officials discretionary

          6  funding for the programs that serve the elderly, and

          7  further, in the actual preliminary budget material

          8  this cut is described as a reduction in

          9  non-program-related funding. And as you are aware,

         10  these funds support small community-based

         11  organizations where seniors receive care and

         12  services from the providers they know best.

         13                 If it weren't for these funds, many

         14  of these programs would have to close their doors.

         15  So, what is the Administration's rationale for this

         16  proposed cut?

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I can't give you

         18  the specific rationale behind that reduction, but it

         19  is a part of an effort to restrain spending overall,

         20  as you know there are outyear budget gaps and there

         21  have been increases in other areas. So the overall

         22  budget of the Department has increased, while this

         23  particular effort was seen, I guess, as a smaller

         24  part of our overall service menu, it is less than

         25  one percent of our entire budget.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. What is

          3  the Administration -- in the current fiscal year,

          4  how many different programs receive this support

          5  from the funding from the Council?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It would be

          7  something in the hundreds, because of the 51 Council

          8  members. I guess on average they help what, five or

          9  six programs, would that be fair?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: No, I have more

         11  than that.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It would depend

         13  on Council members -- some Council members really

         14  divide it up and create small grants for more grants

         15  and some really target larger amounts of money to

         16  just a few groups.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: I have closer

         18  to ten than I have to six, that is for sure. I know

         19  my money doesn't go any place really.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: All right. What

         21  is going to be the impact on those programs?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, that is

         23  something I would look to you folks for guidance on

         24  from your perspective in your community. Because

         25  those are Councilmanic ones we do not monitor them
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          2  per se.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Would you like

          4  us to suggest to our recipients to communicate with

          5  you, Commissioner?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Or certainly you,

          7  yourselves, directly. I would appreciate hearing

          8  what your views are on this as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You are very

         12  welcome.

         13                 Council Member Clarke.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Commissioner,

         15  I must tell you that I probably would be the most

         16  disappointed of our members. First of all, I got a

         17  district that was created for me. It is a forgotten

         18  community, because there were assumptions about who

         19  this community of immigrants were to begin with. St.

         20  Gabriel's Church has one program at one end of my

         21  district, and St. Marks has the other program. Those

         22  seniors themselves and the church help to raise

         23  money to supplement the little money I give them. It

         24  is probably one of the hidden aging communities in

         25  the City of New York.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING

          2                 The Haitian-American seniors have no

          3  place to go, they have just one language. And so

          4  they depend on me and that brings me back to the

          5  issue of refugees, there are many Haitians that were

          6  categorized refugees because they run away from

          7  Pappa Doc and Baby Doc and could not go back, and

          8  whenever there is money for refugees they are never

          9  counted, they are never seen, and they never receive

         10  the kind of benefits that they ought to get, even

         11  after Aristeed returned.

         12                 So, for my district, in particular,

         13  unless the Administration is going to give me

         14  something in writing that if I don't have those

         15  monies they will put it in, and including increasing

         16  the services to my community, there is going to be a

         17  big fight. I want you to know that right now. And if

         18  I start fighting, please know that I am taking my

         19  chair with me and every member of this committee,

         20  because I think that equity is important, I think

         21  that resources is important, and as the community

         22  becomes an aging and an older community, how can you

         23  then take away, you gave nothing to begin with and

         24  the little I give you are going to take to.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, I
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          2  appreciate hearing your concerns about that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: It is not

          4  concern, my outrage.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I appreciate that

          6  being registered.

          7                 I mentioned earlier that we have

          8  adult day services money that has come out between

          9  the initiative of the Council, the agreement and

         10  Mayor Giuliani. That is coming out in an RFP at some

         11  point, and those are funds where we certainly would

         12  encourage applications, including from areas that

         13  don't have the service level of other districts, so

         14  we would certainly welcome applications from every

         15  corner of the City and we are hoping to put programs

         16  in every borough.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Are you going

         18  to put me in front of the curve so I am not behind

         19  the 8-ball?

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I can't promise

         21  that specifically because of the procurement

         22  process, but certainly we will be looking at areas

         23  that don't get quite the same level of services as

         24  another might.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, because
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          2  there are some questions I wanted to ask on that

          3  RFP. You named two kind of models, Program 1 for

          4  Alzheimer's and the other for something else; can

          5  you give us a more complete picture of how they will

          6  work and how you will decide what goes where?

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We hope to get

          8  applications from all over the City and we will be

          9  going to the highest quality rated programs. I think

         10  the ceiling for expenditures, about 190,000, which

         11  wouldn't mean every program would get that, the

         12  programs that are existing programs might not want

         13  to apply for the whole amount because they would

         14  want to add a service on or serve a few more people

         15  and others starting up would want to apply for the

         16  maximum so that they could serve the maximum number

         17  of people in their community. We would be looking at

         18  areas that are not served as well as others, and of

         19  course adult day services is a service that doesn't

         20  have the sort of coverage that senior centers do.

         21                 You asked for another explanation,

         22  the difference between the two types. The

         23  Alzheimer's --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, how will

         25  they be different?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The Alzheimer's

          3  adult day services program typically because of the

          4  nature of that disease require a higher staff ratio.

          5  You can't afford to have, you know, one staff member

          6  watching 20 or 25 Alzheimer's victims because of

          7  their tendency to wander away; whereas, in a pinch,

          8  in an adult day service setting where you are

          9  watching only physically frail people, one staff

         10  member has to go out and say get something the

         11  program needs, having one or two staff members there

         12  would not necessarily be a crisis. In an Alzheimer's

         13  situation it might very well be a crisis. So, that

         14  is the reason for the additional staff.

         15                 Paul Dietrick here, and I haven't

         16  introduced our staff fully here, but Paul Dietrick

         17  has worked out the models and the staff ratios, so

         18  if you want to know even more specifically he could

         19  tell you what the typical program is.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: If you would

         21  kindly send that through the Chair. Beyond that,

         22  since the City Council itself has made a commitment,

         23  would you be then advocating for matching dollars

         24  from the other side of the hall? If we give you $2

         25  million, will you ask for $2 million so we know we
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          2  have $4 million in the pot? Since this seems to be a

          3  really needed service and could take more rather

          4  than less.

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, we are also

          6  advocating for adult day services from Albany, which

          7  got through the legislature last year, that didn't

          8  come to fruition. But as far as discussions I might

          9  have with anyone in the Executive Branch, or even

         10  with you, I wouldn't really mention a specific now

         11  at this point.

         12                 Could I introduce the staff here?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, would you

         14  please.

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Over on your

         16  right and my left is Assistant Commissioner Donna

         17  Tessitore, who oversees the SCRIE program I

         18  mentioned and the Hot Lines and many other benefits

         19  programs.

         20                 Linda Whittaker is Assistant

         21  Commissioner for Community Services, oversees the

         22  senior centers and home care programs transportation

         23  programs.

         24                 You all know Michael Rabin, our

         25  Deputy Commissioner and General Counsel. Ted
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          2  Tuberski introduced himself before, Director of

          3  Administration and Budget.

          4                 Paul Dietrick, the Director of our

          5  Office of Management and Policy, and Frank Roulette,

          6  our Director of Budget.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Thank you. And

          8  may I do the same thing then and introduce the fact

          9  that we have been joined by Council Member Philip

         10  Reed, and by Chair of the Finance Committee, Council

         11  Member Herbert Berman, and I would like to introduce

         12  Council Member Berman and Council Member Reed and

         13  Council Member Abel.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I had a

         16  follow-up question, Councilwoman, when you get

         17  finished. I am holding for a second round.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Please.

         19                 Council Member Berman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Madame

         21  Chair.

         22                 Good afternoon. It is always a

         23  delight seeing each and every one of you.

         24                 I know that you just dealt with it in

         25  your report, but I didn't have a chance to read it
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          2  yet. Yesterday when we had the Department of Finance

          3  testify before us, they indicated that they are

          4  about 80 or 90 percent along the way in dealing with

          5  the Year 2K. Are you similarly advanced? Or do you

          6  expect to be?  Is your timetable current? What is

          7  your anticipation about that event?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I am going to go

          9  to Ted for some more specifics, but we have gotten

         10  assurances for everything that we can possibly

         11  control, we are either on schedule or ahead of

         12  schedule.

         13                 Ted, do you have anything to add?

         14                 MR. TUBERSKI: Yes. All of the systems

         15  that we have developed in the last two years we have

         16  been able to certify as Y2K compliant. We are

         17  upgrading our network operating system, and all of

         18  our computer equipment. By the end of this Fiscal

         19  Year they will all be Y2K compliant.

         20                 We have also surveyed our contract

         21  agencies and wherever there has been a request --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, that was my

         23  next question. Have you done similarly for the

         24  contract agencies?

         25                 MR. TUBERSKI: Yes, we surveyed and
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          2  tried to address any needs that they have raised on

          3  their end regarding the Year 2000 problem. We have

          4  upgraded equipment at over 100 sites. The City also

          5  participated just last Friday in a conference with

          6  all the non-profits addressing the Y2K problem and

          7  encouraging them to look again and look more closely

          8  at their suppliers, as well as their own operations

          9  to make sure that they are addressing all of their

         10  needs, aside from the system that we put in.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Then you are

         12  comfortable with the fact that the City and the

         13  agencies and the seniors who are the beneficiaries,

         14  you know, will not suffer any significant or

         15  appreciable loss of service.

         16                 MR. TUBERSKI: Right. There is just

         17  really two minor items that we are waiting for final

         18  resolution. Our mainframe system for contractor

         19  payments, we have been able to test it and

         20  demonstrate that it is Y2K compliant, but we can't

         21  do a final certification until new software is

         22  installed at the City central mainstream.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: When is that

         24  expected to happen? Before the Fiscal Year?

         25                 MR. TUBERSKI: We don't have a
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          2  timetable for it yet, although we meet regularly

          3  with the Office of Operations to follow through on

          4  it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The next

          6  question, while I was coming in here I was stopped

          7  by a reporter from New York 1 and they asked, or

          8  they are apparently doing some kind of story

          9  regarding a lot of small agencies who did not

         10  receive early on funding, because of the budget

         11  dispute between the Mayor and ourselves.

         12                 Was this question gone into?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: No, not yet.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         15                 And apparently what the angel on

         16  their story is the fact that some of these smaller

         17  agencies are going to have to hold up shop because

         18  they still haven't received the contract dollars

         19  that were allocated.

         20                 They did not identify which agencies,

         21  so I am not saying it is DFTA. It could have been

         22  YCB, you know, it could have been any one of them,

         23  but is that a problem? Is that being addressed? I

         24  mean, what is the sense of comfort that you can give

         25  us on this issue, if at all?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I think I can

          3  give you a pretty good sense of comfort. I am not

          4  aware of any agencies that are contractors of ours

          5  that are in such dire straights.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: When some were

          8  having some problems earlier in the fiscal year, we

          9  made sure they got the advances that they were

         10  entitled to.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, that's

         12  good. I am delighted to hear that.

         13                 Okay, well, that is fine. As always,

         14  you know, DFTA is one of my favorite places, as I

         15  get older it becomes more and more a favorite.

         16                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We promise no

         17  senior air trips, trips by airplane at midnight on

         18  New Years Eve, to answer your first question.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, that is

         20  something not to look forward to.

         21                 All right, thank you very much.

         22                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: In order I will

         24  call on Mike Abel first and then Philip Reed second

         25  and then Council Member Clarke third. In that order,
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          2  if you will.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: I appreciate it,

          4  I have a couple of questions.

          5                 Commissioner, good afternoon. You

          6  talked in your testimony about a million dollars

          7  that is currently in the budget and you basically

          8  gave an overview and you mentioned, I think it was

          9  23 agencies. Is 23 the total number, or is that the

         10  first round?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That is the total

         12  number that we are funding in this Fiscal Year with

         13  the million dollars, and of course we received the

         14  approval to go ahead with the money in the middle of

         15  the fiscal year, so we did not have time to do a

         16  full fledged RFP to put the money out the way we

         17  normally would, so we put it out to existing

         18  agencies. So the people and the neighborhoods that

         19  did benefit from this were those that had programs

         20  already. So that is who got this additional money.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Is there a plan

         22  to enhance that in the upcoming fiscal year? In

         23  other words, increase to new agencies is basically

         24  the question?

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sure. I mean, if
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          2  they win the RFP. So existing agencies can apply for

          3  the $2 million in funds, up to $190,000 or roughly

          4  thereabouts or existing agencies. So it can be

          5  existing or new.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: And out of those

          7  23, have they all been contacted? Is there work all

          8  in the process now?

          9                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes. And they all

         10  know about the new RFP, as do what, 3,000?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         12  Yes.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Three-thousand

         14  other agencies are on the mailing list to get notice

         15  about the RFP.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Your job, not

         17  mine. Have fun. Let me know how it turns out.

         18                 There was an issue raised yesterday

         19  about the number of seniors on SCRIE has increased

         20  by approximately 10,000 since 1995, but the budget

         21  has decreased?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No. Actually

         23  there was a large wave of increase after Mayor

         24  Giuliani and you folks in the Council increased the

         25  income ceiling from sixteen and a half thousand to
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          2  20,000, and then with recertifications and whatnot

          3  and people dropping out of the program,

          4  unfortunately sometimes because they pass away. It

          5  has been more or less flat since then.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: So there hasn't

          7  been an increase?

          8                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There was a big

          9  uptick several years ago, in fact it grew by a

         10  substantial amount, at least by almost a quarter,

         11  between a quarter and a third.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: I think the

         13  number here yesterday was 10,000; does that seem

         14  right?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: No,

         16  that's too high.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: It is too high?

         18  But it did increase.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It did increase.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: And now it has

         21  decreased to a level with the budget?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It is flat.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: It flattened out

         24  to whatever it was in 1995?

         25                 MR. DIETRICK: It flattened out to
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          2  what it became when it was increased. It went up

          3  from I believe 43 or 44,000 to about 50,000,

          4  somewhere in that range.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: By the 6,000

          6  that went out?

          7                 MR. DIETRICK: Yes, somewhere in that

          8  range.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: The change in the

         11  ceiling was January '96, so it was after that that

         12  the significant increase took place.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay. But

         14  budgetarily you are fine with that, though?

         15                 In other words, as we increase the

         16  limit for SCRIE, your money level is fine?

         17                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, it shows up

         18  in the Department of Finance budget, so it's not --

         19  we don't raise the revenues --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's right, it

         21  would be less revenue that would come to the City,

         22  so it wouldn't --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Forgive me for

         25  interfering but that is something that I know about.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That's okay.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: No, that's fine,

          4  because that does answer the question then.

          5                 The only other one that I had that

          6  also came up was, you talked about the federal

          7  grants and state grants that we might be getting,

          8  are there any out there that we know we are not

          9  getting? Or is it still up in the air?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That are pending.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: That are even

         12  preliminary as it is now, that we are definitely not

         13  going to get?

         14                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No, the way our

         15  budget process works, even something that we have

         16  gotten continually for 20 years, say like the foster

         17  grandparent program, but still has to be renewed

         18  each year, we don't count in every budget

         19  calculation, that's why you don't see the same

         20  number each time.

         21                 There are certain grants we don't go

         22  for, we just make sort of a judgment of prudence or

         23  something, we just don't have enough staff to apply

         24  for something. So we apply for oversimplified, sort

         25  of lower hanging fruit.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: But there is

          3  nothing out there that you can say definitely it is

          4  over with, we are not going to get it this year?

          5  Federal or state?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Oh, that we had

          7  been getting?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: That you had

          9  been getting.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No. No. In fact,

         11  one of the grants that we have that I didn't mention

         12  testimony relates to Alzheimer's care-giving and it

         13  is a $2 million grant that we won from the

         14  Department of HHS and our partners are Rockefeller

         15  University, the Kushner Center (phonetic) --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: It is new

         17  though?

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It is new, but

         19  that will also have a sunset, it will sunset out in

         20  no more than two years.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: No, understood.

         22  As most grants and aid does. The question basically

         23  is, is there something out there that we had been

         24  getting, used to get, that we know we are going to

         25  be cut off from?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            42

          1  DEPARTMENT FOR THE AGING

          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Or just doesn't

          4  exist anymore or what have you. Nothing?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Just the slight

          8  reductions in the state budget that we explained

          9  before. We get some increases in service, some

         10  losses in administrative and we are a net loser, the

         11  way it would stand right now.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Okay. Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Council Member

         15  Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you,

         17  Madame Chair.

         18                 Good afternoon, Commissioner, and

         19  colleagues. I have a couple of questions, and I

         20  guess it is good that you introduced some of the

         21  staff.

         22                 I am looking at a letter from Ms.

         23  Whittaker to various contractors about the fact that

         24  the Department of Aging has received word that our

         25  request for funds to cover contractor new needs has
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          2  not been approved.

          3                 Talk to me.

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: There is an

          5  ongoing process to, you know, obviously we come up

          6  with a wishlist, we can't always fund everything,

          7  especially in new needs some of those are capital,

          8  some of those extend over multiple years, sometimes

          9  it is a matter of funding something in a future

         10  year. This was just to enable people to get their

         11  planning processes square, so if they had a new need

         12  that they considered in their scheme of things,

         13  immediate or something they wanted to plan on this

         14  fiscal year, we could not accommodate that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, but you

         16  are saying capital, but the list, this affects your

         17  submission in one or more of the following

         18  categories, rent, utilities --

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That doesn't

         21  sound like capital to me.

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Legal expenses.

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: You are correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Private
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          2  insurance.

          3                 Where is the capital projects?

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: You are correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: This is just

          6  basic increases that these agencies have to incur.

          7  Many of these agencies, as I understand, are

          8  basically funded through DFTA, how are they supposed

          9  to pay the increase if you won't allow them this new

         10  cost?

         11                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Obviously there

         12  is a problem in some instances and in others we can

         13  defer some of these costs, or in some cases shift

         14  some funds around, if they are available, not in

         15  every case.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What does that

         17  mean, shift funds?

         18                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: If there is

         19  unused funds in one portion of the City, because of

         20  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: On one part of

         22  the City?

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Perhaps.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: In the City

         25  budget. In the overall City budget.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: In the instance

          3  of a program say that has to shut down for part of

          4  the year because of a fire or some other emergency,

          5  we would have those funds freed up temporarily and

          6  be able to use them for a critical need elsewhere in

          7  the City, and we wouldn't shift those permanently

          8  but it could help us deal with something, at least

          9  on a temporary basis.

         10                 I am not saying we can address all of

         11  the conceivable new needs that way by any stretch of

         12  the imagination.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What has

         14  traditionally happened?

         15                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That is what has

         16  happened.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Every year you

         18  send this letter out?

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Did you send

         21  this letter out last year?

         22                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What did you do

         24  last year?

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We were able to
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          2  fund more of the new needs.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And on average,

          4  what are we talking about, five percent of the

          5  overall program? Two percent? Eight percent?

          6                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Depending on

          7  inflation, low single digits I would say.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

          9  About one percent.

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I don't know if

         11  you could hear that?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I heard one

         13  percent.

         14                 So, you mean to tell me that in your

         15  budget in all of this fiscal surplus that we have

         16  right here, because I don't see this cut in the

         17  Preliminary Budget, but agencies are discussing it,

         18  so even though we are talking about a minimal, and

         19  one percent doesn't sound like a capital project to

         20  me.

         21                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So we could just

         23  take capital projects off the table now, right?

         24                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I did earlier.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.
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          2                 Are you going to scare seniors half

          3  to death for one percent of their budget?

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Well, I don't

          5  think the average program has a reason to scare

          6  their seniors because a new need --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: They have to

          8  worry about waiting until somebody shuts down or

          9  doesn't spend some money in a gymnasium in

         10  Sheepshead Bay so maybe they could continue to pay

         11  the extra cost for the rent over in the South Bronx,

         12  you know, that is pretty worrisome.

         13                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But for an

         14  average one percent increase, most programs aren't

         15  going to have to shut down or significantly curtail

         16  their activities. We would like to take care of

         17  everybody's wishlist but that is not the real world.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I am not sure

         19  rent and utility is a wishlist. That is what I am

         20  just trying to understand. I mean, you know, Ms.

         21  Whittaker doesn't set herself up to win a popularity

         22  contest sending out these letters here.

         23                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But there are

         24  some other items on new needs lists that often

         25  aren't as critical as a rent increase.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And we would all

          3  agree that rent and utilities are fairly basic?

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: That's true. But

          5  not every program is facing an increase this year.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So you are

          7  saying that for those that are facing those really

          8  important issues of rent and utilities, you would

          9  look at giving them the increases to cover that?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Sometimes

         11  agencies themselves, because of the way their

         12  service here proceeds, are able to fund some of

         13  these things from their own budget, sometimes they

         14  come to us and demonstrate they can't do it any

         15  other way, and we try to be creative at least on a

         16  short-term basis.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, so this is

         18  a Preliminary Budget; in other words, we have time

         19  to rethink this, right?

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I am saying even

         21  without your changes we sometimes, or proposed

         22  changes, we can try to be creative in working out a

         23  solution, either within the program itself or by

         24  shifting funds --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I guess my point
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          2  is, you didn't have to send this letter out last

          3  year, right?

          4                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We didn't send

          5  that letter out.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So we have time

          7  in looking at being able to take this letter back

          8  off the table by the end of this budget process

          9  probably, right?

         10                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I don't know if

         11  we can take the letter back.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But you can

         13  write another letter saying disregard it, right?

         14                 I have two other lines of

         15  questioning, areas, Madame Chair, if you will, for

         16  just a moment.

         17                 In my community we have, I am looking

         18  at a list of these assisted housing facilities,

         19  which is becoming a big issue. I have got two on

         20  line and one that is actually happening now. I just

         21  recently understood the difference between assisted

         22  and assistive, and with a New York accent you

         23  probably can't tell the difference half the time.

         24                 Is DFTA doing any studies or looking

         25  at this fairly critical need for senior housing? And
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          2  that is setting up the next question that I have.

          3                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: It is not really

          4  possible for us to do a really comprehensive survey,

          5  other than knocking on every door in the City,

          6  except to say that we know there is a demand in New

          7  York City, as there is even around the country and

          8  even pretty well off suburbs for various types of

          9  senior housing, be they, you know, life care

         10  communities or assisted living or the whole gamut.

         11  So, we do appreciate the funds that were put in our

         12  budget for the first time to enable us to begin some

         13  initiatives in senior housing, which we are doing

         14  this year.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The second

         16  question, which seems to be coming up a lot and in

         17  terms of senior housing, and you and I have talked

         18  about this independent of this process, but NYCHA,

         19  did you have something to say?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Oh.

         22                 NYCHA is fairly aggressively moving

         23  to have seniors that have been in apartments where

         24  they raise families, move into smaller units. I

         25  don't have a problem with that yet, I can understand
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          2  that. They want to move larger families into larger

          3  units, they want to move those who no longer need

          4  those units down.

          5                 But there has become some almost

          6  level of intimidation that I am hearing about with

          7  seniors in some of these developments. There does

          8  not seem to be a great deal of respect for the fact

          9  that at the very least we ought to try to keep these

         10  seniors in the same, if not the same building,

         11  certainly the same development. Is there any

         12  dialogue between NYCHA and DFTA about this rather

         13  aggressive process they have for, because we are

         14  talking about housing for seniors, and we have been

         15  talking about NORCs and doing NORCs in NYCHA and all

         16  of that, that can't happen if we don't have a system

         17  put in place to make sure that the seniors are where

         18  they are supposed to be in these buildings; could

         19  you talk about that briefly?

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We have dialogues

         21  at various levels with NYCHA every day, certainly a

         22  hundred or more of our senior centers in NYCHA

         23  facilities, but as far as people in one development,

         24  NYCHA staff being more assertive with seniors than

         25  two miles down the road, Donna Tessitore oversees
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          2  the hot lines that get some of those complaints. I

          3  don't know if, Donna, you would want to comment on

          4  anything you have heard or --

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: We

          6  get a lot of calls.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Introduce

          8  yourself.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: I

         10  am Donna Tesstitore, Assistant Commissioner for

         11  Senior Assistance and Benefits. We do get a lot of

         12  calls in our small housing unit from seniors who are

         13  either in NYCHA developments now or are on waiting

         14  lists to get into NYCHA developments, and while we

         15  have no direct authority or oversight obviously in

         16  this area with the Housing Authority, we do have

         17  relationships with some of the sub units, like

         18  management and the Section 8 Unit and so on, and we

         19  try to advocate on the seniors' behalf.

         20                 I can't say that I have heard of any

         21  harassment situations per se, but clearly this is a

         22  troubling issue for a lot of seniors who are being

         23  asked to look at units in other parts of the

         24  development, which may be geographically disparate,

         25  put them in a different neighborhood essentially or
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          2  even to look at other units.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Does NYCHA have

          4  a policy about this, or a general idea or a

          5  statement of what is in the best interest of

          6  seniors?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE: I

          8  have not seen one.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Is that

         10  something that you should be developing?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         12  Well, I am not clear that we have the authority that

         13  we clearly, as I said, try and intervene on behalf

         14  of seniors as we can on a case-by-case basis, and we

         15  can certainly recommend to the folks we are dealing

         16  with at the Housing Authority that a policy would be

         17  useful.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I don't quite

         19  get from NYCHA, again, I put myself politically on

         20  the line with some seniors to suggest that in and of

         21  itself moving is not something that I think is the

         22  worst thing, but if there is no policy, if it is all

         23  Helter Skelter, it is difficult.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Council Member

         25  Reed, just to add to the discussion, I have had the
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          2  same experiences brought to my attention in my

          3  community of Flushing, and I had written a letter to

          4  the Eearst Wile Commissioner, who has since left the

          5  job at NYCHA. I have referred the problems, there

          6  were three separate kinds of problems including

          7  intimidation, and false representation in terms of

          8  prior to eviction actions, and a few other things

          9  that I thought were outrageously stupid. I have

         10  raised them with a newly installed officer, I have

         11  not heard from them yet. I do intend to proceed with

         12  it. If you would like to recommend that we consider

         13  that as a hearing subject for the Committee on

         14  Aging, I would be very happy to consider it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you,

         16  Madame Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: You are

         18  welcome.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         20                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: Are you

         22  finished, sir?

         23                 Okay, Council Member Clarke.

         24                 MR. TUBERSKI: Madame Chair, may I

         25  just ask, if there are particular instances of which
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          2  you are aware, if you would refer them to our

          3  Department as well, we will try to cut through some

          4  of the bureaucracy and get to the high level of

          5  NYCHA --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Who should we

          7  refer them to?

          8                 MR. TUBERSKI: To Donna Tessitore.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Spell your last

         10  name for me.

         11                 MR. TUBERSKI: T-e-s-s-i-t-o-r-e.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What is your

         13  phone number?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TESSITORE:

         15  442-3094.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         17                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: And just before

         19  Ms. Clarke begins, just let me read into the record,

         20  I have been handed a note indicating that Council

         21  Member Lasher is not in attendance to date because

         22  it is a Jewish holiday.

         23                 And that having been done, I turn the

         24  floor over to Council Member

         25  Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Commissioner,

          3  I usually ask questions that other members don't

          4  need to ask because they don't have the same impact

          5  with a community of immigrants as I do, and you have

          6  here that you are doing some programs in ESL and

          7  that you are up to your fifth cycle; I would like to

          8  know if any of these classes have been done in the

          9  Haitian-American community where the elderly, it is

         10  going to be very hard for them to take on a second

         11  language to begin with and to negotiate, many of

         12  whom don't even leave home, is there a way of

         13  reaching them and helping them? Because as you know,

         14  citizenship is a priority because they can't receive

         15  their benefits, whether it is their food stamps, you

         16  know, all the government benefits are held until

         17  they become citizens, and I am pleased that you are

         18  working with the Department of Youth and Community

         19  Development who has some projects in some

         20  communities, including my own citizenship and going

         21  out and helping the disabled and the elderly, but

         22  even that is not enough. Because in many cases you

         23  have groups of seniors in the same place, has it

         24  been working and have you reached out what

         25  communities of ESL, are you just doing English as a
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          2  second language, in Spanish, what languages are you

          3  trying to do the training in so that people become

          4  citizens?

          5                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: We are doing them

          6  in as many languages as we can.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Can you name

          8  them.

          9                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: I can't name all

         10  of them. Russian is another one that we are doing on

         11  Ocean Parkway.

         12                 Linda, can you add anything?

         13                 MS. WHITTAKER: Through our refugee

         14  assistance grant and our partners, some of the ESL

         15  classes have been conducted in the different parts,

         16  including the Haitian community. One of the

         17  resources that has been used has been CAMA, which is

         18  the Church Avenue Merchants Association, they are a

         19  partner with us, not under our particular grant, but

         20  at the grant overall for New York State. They are

         21  one of the recipients that also is receiving money

         22  to help the seniors become citizens.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: With all

         24  respect to you and to the organizations that are

         25  really trying and helpful, I know for many Haitians,
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          2  unless you are going to go to the Haitian Center

          3  Council, or to Haitian Alliance, they are not

          4  leaving home because they are not telling anybody

          5  else their business, so to tell me that they go to

          6  CAMA, while they still come to my office and ask me

          7  can I send somebody to their home, which is why

          8  Henry Frank is overworked because, you know, the

          9  service is not there. You may say you are providing

         10  it because somebody won an RFP, but you are not

         11  reaching the real people who are helping the

         12  community. These are the people who have to do it as

         13  volunteers while others get a grant and are not

         14  reaching the very people they are supposed to reach,

         15  including, I don't know an elderly Haitian who is

         16  going to let somebody in their apartment, unless

         17  they are going to speak Creole.

         18                 MS. WHITTAKER: Well, the ESL classes

         19  which we are conducting are at sites. We are not in

         20  individual's homes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay, so then

         22  I will talk to CYCD who is bringing the home part of

         23  it.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: If you spot a
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          2  neighborhood or a community that really is not being

          3  served, we would certainly like to know about it,

          4  and to the extent we can rustle resources up

          5  together, including volunteers for the private

          6  sector --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I represent 78

          8  different ethnic groups in the 40th District, from

          9  1226 on Church Avenue, go to that post office, mail

         10  comes from 78 different nations, none of whom are

         11  timid to call my office, I should tell you that.

         12                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: But some of those

         13  ethnic groups do have refugee assistance or

         14  immigration assistance, ESL, if there is one that

         15  really stands out as being a glaring omission, we

         16  certainly would like to know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Henry Frank

         18  will call you from Haitian Center Council.

         19                 COMMISSIONER STUPP: Okay, thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON HARRISON: All right, if

         21  there are no further questions from my colleagues at

         22  the table, then I will look at the clock and say it

         23  is one minute after 2:00, this hearing is to last

         24  from 1:00 until 2:00, it is now therefore adjourned

         25  with our thanks to you for your participation.
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          2                 We now have the second half of the

          3  hearing, which will be the public hearing section,

          4  and we will wait for our friends from DFTA to clear

          5  the table and we will enter into the next phase of

          6  our hearing.

          7                 (This portion of the hearing

          8  concluded at 2:01 p.m.)

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            61

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 2nd day of March 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410
